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PERFORMING THE BUSINESS INCLUSION PROGRAM OUTREACH EVALUATION 
 

FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS 
 
1.   How do you find out if a firm is certified by MTA? 
 Obtain MTA’s certification list from them directly.  
 
2. Do we need to verify DBE status if it is not part of the original contract? 
 No. However, a DBE may be counted towards MBE or WBE participation so long 

as it meets the City’s MBE and/or WBE criteria. 
 
3. Do we accept copies of certifications or do we still need to check the CUCP and 

OCC databases?  
 You must verify with the CUCP/ other databases. A bidder/ proposer submitting a 

certification letter as proof of status may not be aware that a decertification letter 
had also been sent. However, the databases should be current. 

 
4. If a firm provides a Letter of Interest from a subconsultant but does not include 

them in their Summary Sheet, is that a reason for failing the BIP Outreach 
requirements? 

 No. The City should ask for clarification by reminding the bidder/proposer of the 
“Required Documentation” requirements, state the submission discrepancy (how 
they are failing to meet the Required Documentation), and then ask them for an 
explanation. 

 
5. If a firm includes a subconsultant on their Schedule A but not on their Summary 

Sheet and there is no Letter of Interest, do they fail the BIP Outreach 
requirements or can we just remove the subconsultant from their Schedule A? 

 They may fail the BIP Outreach requirements depending on the situation. If that is 
the only subconsultant listed on their Schedule A, they would fail. If it is one 
subconsultant in a long list of subconsultants on the Schedule A, Summary Sheet, 
and Letters of Interest, then the analyst can request clarification similar to the 
response to question #4. No firm listed on the Schedule A can be removed from 
the Schedule A prior to contract award. 

 
6. On some of the completed proposals the dates of the Letters of Interest were noted 

on the Schedule A. Is this required and what role does the date play in the 
process? 

 It is not required. It is recommended that the analyst evaluating the outreach 
make these notations to use as a cross-reference with the Summary Sheet dates. 
This information may also be used to determine if a reason for selection/non-
selection is justified when evaluating if a bidder/proposer “Negotiated in Good 
Faith.” 

 
7. On some of the completed proposals, the names and addresses have been 

corrected on the Schedule A but on others they weren’t. Should we compare the 
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information from the Schedule A to the Letters of Interest and correcting 
differences?  

 Yes. The recommendation for award will need to include the correct information; 
having it correct on the Schedule A is easier than having to locate it in all of the 
bids, quotes, or Letters of Interest that have been submitted. 

 
8. What do we do if an e-mail is provided instead of a Letter of Interest and no 

address or phone number is provided for verification with the Schedule A? 
 Emails are accepted as LOIs. If address and phone number information is not 

present in the e-mail, then the bidder/ proposer should be asked to provide this 
information via a business card, letterhead, or another e-mail that has been 
forwarded from the potential subcontractor. 

 
9. On the Schedule A of some of the completed proposals, there are notations stating 

“almost certified” or “decertified in 2005”. How would we know if someone has 
been decertified or in the process of being certified by a particular agency? Is the 
notation necessary? 

 You should only include current certification status (time of review and/ or at 
award of contract). A contractor or proposer will often list a firm’s certification 
status as pending; however, only those that are currently certified can be counted 
towards pledged participation levels. 

 
10. Most of the comments for Indicator No. 7 are on the Schedule A. Are the firms 

informed of the changes made to their Schedule A or given a copy of the notes?  
 Those notes are made based on analyst review.  The firms are informed of the 

changes in that they are asked to revise and re-submit the Schedule A to correct 
addresses, certification status, etc.  However, a bidder/proposer cannot add/ 
remove firms from their original submission at this time. 

 
11. Are there certain conditions where we should no longer follow-up with a firm for 

clarification or additional documentation? In other words, is there a certain 
situation where the firm is just deemed non-compliant with the BIP Outreach 
requirements or should we continue to work with the firm to get them to pass?  

 There are conditions where you would not follow-up with a firm for clarification. 
More importantly, you can not ask for additional documentation even though a 
firm may submit some additional documentation as a result of responding to a 
clarification request (see the response for question #4 for the clarification 
process).  For example, if the prime made no (zero) modifications to their SS, then 
they are non-responsive to the BIP Outreach requirements.  However, upon 
notification that the outreach requirements were not met, a firm may respond with 
an assertion that they had technical difficulties which precluded them from fully 
meeting the requirements on the BAVN. In their response, the firm could provide 
additional documentation, such as copies of e-mails between them and ITA 
regarding the technical difficulty. The analyst would then need to follow-up with 
ITA to confirm the timing and nature of the technical difficulty to determine how 
or if it precluded the firm from completing their BAVN outreach. City Staff may 
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also need to follow-up with the firm to determine if they followed the procedures 
outlined in the proposal documents in the event of a technical difficulty. 
Ultimately, the need to follow-up for clarification is determined on a case-by-case 
basis, since there can be many different scenarios where a non-responsive 
recommendation would apply. While the City wants to work with every firm in 
order to find them responsive, Staff must be careful when making clarification 
requests in that they must treat all respondents equally and not make a request 
that could be perceived by the public as giving one firm an unfair advantage over 
the others. 

 
12.  If the letters of intent are not dated or are dated after the SOQ was due, are they 
 still acceptable? 
 Undated Letters of Intent (LOI) are fine so long as they are specific to the 
 project.  Letters dated after the SOQ due date are acceptable so long as there is 
 evidence that there was an understanding between the two firms prior to the SOQ 
 submission. City Staff needs to make sure an LOI is rec'd from all firms that are 
 listed on a proposers' Schedule A in order to confirm Negotiation in Good Faith. 
  
13.  When we verify certifications, specific NAICS codes are identified by the 
 certifying agency.  Should we be checking to see if these NAICS codes match the 

services to be provided in the RFQ or does it not matter so long as they are 
certified in any NAICS code?  

 A firm must be licensed to perform the work they are listed for in order for 
 the bidder or proposer to receive credit towards their pledged participation 
 levels. Otherwise, the certified firm is not performing a “commercially useful 
 function.”    
 
14.  One of the consultants has 1 subconsultant listed on their Summary Sheet (SS) 

and 13 subconsultants listed on their Schedule A.  13 Letters of Intent were 
included in their SOQ. Should we ask for clarification from the consultant or 
would this be a situation where the SOQ is non-responsive since their SS was 
clearly not completed correctly. 

  Historically, proposers who make no modifications to their SS are automatically 
 deemed non-responsive (for failure to perform the SS function at all).  In this 
 case, the prime did make 1 modification and the Schedule A is consistent with the 
 LOIs submitted with their SOQ. This allows you to ask the prime for clarification 
 based on the procedures stated in the response to question #4.  
 


